
  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 1 of 10 
 

MINUTES 
ST. CLAIR SHORES CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

October 17, 2016 
 
Regular Meeting of the City Council, held in the Council Chambers, located at 27600 Jefferson Circle Dr., St. Clair 
Shores, Michigan.   
 
Present: Mayor Kip C. Walby, Council Members Peter Accica, John Caron, Ronald Frederick, Peter 

Rubino, Candice Rusie, and Chris Vitale 
 
Also Present:  City Clerk Mary Kotowski, Directors Mary Jane D’Herde, Doug Haag, Fire Chief Morehouse, 

Chris Rayes, Chief Woodcox, and City Attorney Robert Ihrie  
   
1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walby called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Ms. Kotowski, City Clerk, called roll with a quorum present.  
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those in attendance.   
 
2. PROCLAMATIONS & PRESENTATIONS-ST. ISAAC JOGUES MEN’S CLUB PRESENTATION 
 
Mike Belew, Shawn Hijack, and Charlie Tiner were present.   
 
Mr. Belew said they changed the Golf Outing to a Tiseo fundraiser and raised $2,361.  The Tiseo family requested 
that the money be donated to the City for the skate park.   
 
Mayor Walby said that St. Isaac Jogues Men’s Club is a great supporter of the City and for the skate park.  We 
hope to hear from the State by mid December to see if we got the grant or not.  We’ve communicated and worked 
well with the DNR.  We will use environmental friendly planting.  The bad news is there are more applicants this 
year than last year.  He thanked St. Isaac Jogues Men’s Club.  
 
3. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION ON AGENDA ITEMS (2 MINUTE TIME LIMIT)  
 
Jim Goodfellow, St. Clair Shores Resident, spoke on agenda items 5, 6a, 6b, and 6c.  He thanked the staff for 
having carryover money.  He thanked the resident who came up with money for the equipment and training for the 
K-9 Officer.  He thanked Chief Woodcox.  He hopes there will be more players at the Golf Course that will cover the 
cost of the golf carts.  He hopes Council will approve fixing the roof before the weather gets worse.  
 
4. UPDATE ON BASEMENT FLOODING RESOLUTION OPTIONS 
 
Mr. Smith commented that Bryan Babcock would have been here, but he has a death in the family.  
 
Kyle Seidel, AEW, gave update as to what we’ve seen from the basement backup evaluation that started in 
September.  There has been intense rainfall.  The City owns approximately 950,000 feet of sanitary Sewer 
(approximately 180 miles).  Through October 11th approximately 14,600 feet (24%) has been investigated of the 
planned 62,000 feet within this program.  The main issues found are root intrusion into the sewer main and private 
sanitary leads, and grease build-up in the sewer main.  We had over 400 houses back up at the August 16, 2016 
rain event.  We can maintain our sewers, residents can maintain their private leads, we can increase sewer 
capacity, we can remove flow from sewer, and public education.  This whole sewer system has been looked at 
twice recently (with the exception of a small section north end and small section south end).  
 
He discussed sewer and lead maintenance and repair.  They recommend that a citywide sewer cleaning and 
maintenance program be developed, which would cost approximately $3 million to investigate all the City’s sanitary 
sewers.  Develop a localized chemical root control program.  Preliminary estimates indicate that approximately 
25% sewers (235,000 feet) may need root control.  Estimated cost is $550,000 to treat every 2 years.  Evaluate 
cost effective sewer repairs compared to indefinite root maintenance.  Develop a grease ordinance.   
 
Mr. Seidel said there are approximately 27,000 sewer leads connected to the City’s sewer lines.  Initial emergency 
sewer repair program data indicates that approximate 20%-25% of the private sewer leads have root intrusion or 
mineral deposits.  They will be notifying the property owners of lead issues they find with pictures and notifications.   
 
Mr. Seidel discussed increasing sewer capacity in the followings ways:  10 Mile Sanitary Relief Sewer Project 
(2017 construction season), investigate additional sewer capacity (8 ½ Mile relief drain, Northeast relief sewer, 
Southeast Macomb Sanitary District sewers), and investigate new relief sewers.  
 
Mr. Seidel discussed removing flow from sewers (possible downspout connection to sanitary system in St. Clair 
Shores) and investigate feasibility to separate combined sewers.  



  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 2 of 10 
 

 
Agenda Item 4 (cont’d) 
 
Mr. Seidel discussed increasing public education to prevent basement backups by putting additional information on 
the St. Clair Shores website, distributing information with utility bill mailers, distributing flyer information in City 
facilities.  They plan to refine their recommendations and come back to Council once the investigations are 
complete.  
 
Mr. Accica asked about the chemical treatment and about the chemicals getting into the lake.  
 
Mr. Seidel said the chemical would be in the sanitary main and would go down to the treatment center.  
 
Mr. Vitale asked about pipe lining.  
 
Mr. Seidel said we have done pipe lining in the City.  There are situations where it would help with the joints, but it 
wouldn’t help with the leads.   
 
Mr. Vitale said he would like to see pipe lining over root control.  
 
Mr. Seidel said pipe lining solves part of the problems.  
 
Mr. Rubino asked if we had much flooding with the rainfall on September 29th. 
 
Mr. Smith replied no.  
 
Mr. Rubino asked if he can quantify the effect of the blockage that was on the video.   
 
Mr. Seidel said they have not done hydraulic modeling.  Anything in the sewer that is foreign blocking the flow does 
affect the water surface.   
 
Mr. Rubino asked if we are identifying what types of trees are in the area that are causing these issues.  He said 
John Caron mentioned that it was silver maple trees.  He asked if someone wants to cut down their silver maple 
tree why we argue with them.  He asked why we don’t have the resident pay to have it removed and replaced with 
a tree that doesn’t have the same root issues.  He asked why we are jetting because from what he is seeing jetting 
doesn’t tell us anything.  We need to look at a different alternative.  We are notifying residents of where we saw the 
roots coming out into the main.  He asked how someone determines if their downspouts are going into the storm or 
sanitary main.  
 
Mr. Smith said they can take the clean out cap off and put water down the downspout and check for water.  
 
Mr. Seidel said a dye test is another way where the residents can see if it is connected to the storm sewer main or 
the sanitary sewer main.  He said residents can also have a camera put down the downspout to see where it is 
connected.  He said not only are these properties with connected downspouts adding to the flooding they are also 
adding to the sewer costs.  The City pays over 50% for storm water treatment citywide.  That is $4.5 million for 
storm water that is directly into the system.  
 
Mr. Rubino said we are working on a way to capture that and collect some of that money.   
 
Mayor Walby said we are doing studies and evaluations.  
 
Mr. Rubino said if we can save $2.5 million over 2 years it could pay for itself.  
 
Mr. Caron said every address Mr. Seidel gave in the memo has a silver maple tree at the address (according to the 
street view map).  That is something that we have to look at.  We are probably going to have to look at every 5 
years cycling through the City.  He asked if we are in the engineering design and construction part of the 10 Mile 
Relief Drain Project.  He asked what the timeline is and where we are at in the process.  
 
Mr. Seidel said we just got into the design mode.  We just started and were authorized to proceed with this a month 
ago.  He said we were looking at bidding this with alternatives, but with MDOT you cannot bid with alternatives.  He 
said the plans will be delivered in mid November.  We are looking at mid spring through the MDOT schedule.  They 
are on task for schedules that he laid out.  They will be talking later this week. 
 
Mayor Walby asked for the milestones and timeline in 2 weeks.  
 
Mr. Seidel said yes.  
 



  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 3 of 10 
 

Agenda Item 4 (cont’d) 
 
Mr. Caron said we had Council’s approval for the expenditure in January to start engineering it.   
 
Roy Rose, AEW, said it was approved back in January or February.  We came up with three alternatives and 
provided them to the City in June.  Then we talked about the business with advance construction on the sewer.  
There were other pieces that were involved and it wasn’t being sat on.   
 
Mr. Caron said there are proposed dates to submit information to the State and City that need to be added to the 
timeline.  The sewer main is gravity fed.  With the size and age of the pipes and with how much flow we are 
expecting we have to get some engineering math behind it.  
 
Mr. Accica informed residents to get their drains snaked.  He does maintenance on his and he thinks that is what 
people are going to have to do.  
 
Mr. Frederick said most of his questions have been answered.  He would like to discuss the grease that was in the 
sewer main.  He said maybe that is something that we need to inform the residents about (in regards to grease).  
He said we should work with the Communications Department about informing residents to what should or should 
not go down the drain.  
 
Mr. Rose said they look at a lot of sewers and what we saw on Elizabeth was not what you normally see for 
residents.  That is what we would see from a restaurant.  That is an anomaly.  
 
Ms. Rusie said we need to work on a plan for public education to get the word out to cut down on some of these 
issues.  She would like the letter to be sent out as quickly as possible to the residents whose leads were full of 
roots.   
 
Mayor Walby said we are putting the letter together now.  
 
Mr. Vitale asked if we currently do not have a grease ordinance.  
 
Mr. Smith said no.  There are requirements for businesses when they build.  
 
Mr. Vitale said we definitely need to have one.  He asked if the storm water is actually metered for what we are 
billed.   
 
Mr. Seidel said yes it is metered at Marter Road and County Line.  They take all the water meter bills and then they 
get a figure by the additional amount as the storm water.  
  
Mr. Vitale said he would be for removing silver maple trees if there is proof that the roots are getting in the main 
and it is the cause of the problems.  Our City does not officially endorse the sewer line warranty program any 
longer, although his experience with it is good.   
 
Mayor Walby said we will have AEW back after the first of the year.  We will get an update at that time from AEW.  
We are making progress.  We are taking it seriously.  We do only have one truck.  There is a saw grant that we are 
looking at.  We are trying to move forward.  We know there is a problem and we are working on it, so bear with us.  
 
5. REQUEST APPROVAL OF FY 2016 CARRYOVERS 
 
Doug Haag said every year at this time that we request a carry over.  This is a basic process and a standard 
procedure for every city.     
 
Each year as part of the year-end process departments are allowed to carry-over funds for certain projects and 
purchases with Council approval. The initial criteria that has been established previously by Council for funds to be 
carried over includes 1) the project/purchase was budgeted in FY 2016 and 2) sufficient balance was available in 
the account at year end to cover the amount of the carryover.  Any projects previously approved by Council are so 
noted. 
 
The General Fund carryovers total $784,610 as compared to $552,659 last year.  The largest single item is again 
the insurance reserves for property, liability and workers compensation at $539,677 (this compares to $352,670 
last year, indicating claims are up). 
 
Moved by Council Member Caron, supported by Council Member Rubino to approve FY 2016 Carryovers as 
follows: 
 



  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 4 of 10 
 

 
 
Ayes:  All – 7 



  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 5 of 10 
 

 
6. BIDS/CONTRACTS/PURCHASE ORDERS 
 

a. Police Dept. Purchase of new K-9 plus necessary training and equipment 
 
Chief Woodcox said he is requesting permission to purchase a new K-9 Officer.  Hondo passed away earlier this 
year.  Currently the department has only 1 active police dog.  Typically the department has two dogs available for 
narcotics detection, suspect tracking, missing person tracking, building searches, crowd control, and public 
relations.    
 
One resident in the City donated the money for the equipment and training because they knew how important our 
K-9 Officers are to us. Mr. Fred Maloof reached out to the department immediately after hearing of the passing of 
Hondo and volunteered to purchase the new K-9 Officer for the City.   
 
Ms. Rusie said it is a wonderful donation by the resident to help out the police.  
 
Chief Woodcox said most often they utilize the dogs for tracking individuals, if they believe there is a violent 
individual in a building (they send the dog in), or to locate lost children and individuals.  These dogs are trained to 
locate newly dropped articles also.  We use these dogs for training and crowd control.  They are not trained in 
bomb detection because there are passive and aggressive find dogs and our dogs are trained to aggressively find 
and bomb detection dogs are trained to passively find bombs.   
 
Mr. Caron asked if the same handler for Hondo will be the handler for this dog.  
 
Chief Woodcox said it is a sought after position.  They did interviews and home visits with the family and made a 
selection.  
 
Mr. Rubino thanked the resident for the donation. 
 
Ms. Rusie asked if they can bring the dog to Council to be introduced. 
 
Chief Woodcox said they will pick up the dog in Ohio on October 23rd and training begins on October 24th.  
 
Moved by Council Member Rusie, supported by Council Member Frederick to approve the purchase of new 
K-9 officer, related equipment and first year of training with a total cost of $11,600 from K9 Academy 
Training Facility, as recommended by the City Manager. 
 
Ayes:  All – 7 

 
b. Request approval to lease or purchase 75 EZ-GO TXT golf carts 

 
In February, we solicited bids for both purchasing and leasing. We received bids from Club Car and EZ-GO but not 
Yamaha. Although I spoke with Yamaha and made them aware of the bid request, they did not submit one. Another 
factor that made it difficult to compare was that Club Car bid a DC drive system and EZ-GO bid their AC drive 
system. After reviewing the bids, we determined that it would be in our best interest to reject both and rebid. In July, 
we put out another request for bids. In the bid document, we requested pricing for both purchasing and leasing. In 
addition, we asked for an alternate bid for three carts to be purchased for the use of our Activity groups. In our bid 
document, we specified that if a company offered both drive systems, they should submit pricing for both as we 
would be comparing AC against AC and DC against DC in our evaluation of the bids. We also requested annual 
pricing for a service agreement.  We are recommending that we purchase or lease the EZ-GO TXT carts, which are 
a DC drive system. Although we liked the AC drive system it was very difficult to quantify any potential electrical 
savings. EZ-GO is offering lowest price whether we lease or purchase. In addition, they are offering the most for 
the trade in value, service package and have the lowest bid for the additional carts for activities. 
 
Mr. Smith said the cost at the end of eight years would be equal except that at the end of eight years the carts 
would be sold for $90,000.  We would show consistent course of what it costs to operate and we would fund the 
entire purchase not including the trade in through Motor Pool.   
 
Mr. Rubino asked if we are going to purchase service contract.  
 
Mr. Smith replied yes.  
 
Moved by Council Member Rubino, supported by Council Member Frederick to approve to purchase 75 EZ-
GO TXT golf carts through Spartan Distributors.  
 
Ayes:  All – 7 



  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 6 of 10 
 

Agenda Item 6 (cont’d) 
 

c. Request to award the bid to Tri-Star Roofing and Sheet Metal for the roof at North End Fire Station 
for $48,800.00 for an EPDM Roof.  Bids opened (10/12/2016). 

 
The roof for the North End Fire Station was advertised on September 28, 2016.  There was a mandatory walk-
through on October 5, 2016 in which there were 7 attendees, 5 of which were roofing contractors.  The 
specifications requested bids for EPDM roof and an alternate for a standing metal seam roof.  Two bids were 
received and opened on October 12, 2016 at 10:00.  The low bid for the EPDM as well as Alternate No. 1 for the 
standing metal seam roof was Tri-Star Roofing and Sheet Metal in the amount of $48,800.00.  Tri-Star also 
submitted the voluntary alternate for TPO Roof which could result in the savings of $4,000.00 but is not being 
recommended as AEW’s professional opinion that it is not an equal product to the EPDM. 
 
Mr. Rose provided Council with a letter of recommendation.  The difference between EPDM roof and a TPO roof is 
TPO is more of a plastic type roof and EPDM roof is standing metal seam roof.  Their recommendation is to go with 
the EPDM roof.  He said the way it was bid is they were supposed to provide the base bid with EPDM and Tri-Star 
had it separately.  He said there was no requirement for a bid bond in the package.  
 
Mr. Accica asked if there is a 20 year warranty on the roof.   Mr. Rose replied yes.  
 
Mr. Accica said the typical work of 5 years of this system and Tri-Star looks like they’ve been in business for 3 
years.  They gave us 5 or 7 clients they’ve had in the past.  We called up all of their recommendations.  We were 
only able to get a hold of the Macomb Intermediate School District, which gave them a high recommendation.  
 
Mr. Rubino asked what the difference is of a bid bond and maintenance bond.  
 
Mr. Rose explained the difference.  
 
Mr. Rubino mentioned the advertisement for bid indicated a bond was required.  We have 2 different things.  He 
said we just went through this exact thing.  He was told the bond was not required.  
 
Mr. Rose noted the bid ad refers the bidders to go to MITN for the bid documents and in the detailed specification it 
says we do not require a bid bond.  
 
Mr. Rayes said we issued an addendum when the error was noted.  The Addendum was sent to everyone who was 
sent the bid documents on MITN.  
 
Mr. Rose said the addendum goes through MITN also.  In the bid form they acknowledged that they saw the 
addendum and they didn’t need a bid bond.  
 
Mr. Rubino thanked the firemen for temporarily staying in the RV.   Mr. Rubino said we got it so the fire house could 
be livable. 
 
Mr. Smith said it is not back up.  The insurance company has to give clearance.  
 
Mr. Rubino asked who hired the company to come in and do it.  
 
Mr. Smith said the City called them in.  
 
Mr. Rubino asked how much it costed.  
 
Fire Chief Morehouse said he used a restoration company. 
 
Mr. Rubino asked if they are on the list.  
 
Fire Chief Morehouse said no because we did not get return calls.  He waited several hours.  This company was 
brought to us through other restoration companies.  
 
Mr. Rubino said we have a list of restoration companies.  He asked Mr. Smith if he knew we were using a company 
that was not vetted.  Mr. Smith said he did not.  
 
Mr. Vitale said he called a company that does metal roofing.  We don’t want another incident.   
 
Mr. Frederick asked about the roof and if they both have the same warranty.  
 
Mr. Rose said they both have a 20 year warranty.  There is such a low pitch in the roof and there is extra cost  



  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 7 of 10 
 

Agenda Item 6 (cont’d) 
 
because of the low pitch.  
 
Mr. Caron said in terms of the process being screwed up at least in this case we did get it corrected with the 
addendum.  These types of mistakes on these things for relatively small contracts is unacceptable. 
 
Mr. Accica said it states a guaranteed bond.  He doesn’t want to hold this up because it needs to get done, but he 
thinks it should go to Laduke.   
 
Ms. Rusie said she echoes her colleagues’ comments.  This is the 3rd time and there are still issues and it hurts us.   
 
Mr. Rubino said he would love to say no to this, but the simple fact that our firefighters agreed to stay in a trailer 
and saved a multi-unit condo complex.  There was an addendum, but he wants to know why we didn’t use people 
on our restoration list.  He wants to know how much it will cost, how much our insurance will cover, and how much 
it will cost out of pocket.  He will vote for it only because we have to do it for the residents and firefighters.  
 
Moved by Council Member Caron, supported by Council Member Frederick to award the bid to Tri-Star 
Roofing and Sheet Metal for the roof at North End Fire Station for $48,800.00 for an EPDM Roof, as 
recommended by the City Manager.   
 
Ayes:  All – 6 
Nays: Accica 
 
7. CONSENT AGENDA – All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

enacted by one motion and approved by a vote of City Council.  There will be no separate discussion of the 
items unless the Mayor and or a Council Member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from 
the general order of business and considered under the last item of the Consent Agenda. 

 
Moved by Council Member Caron, supported by Council Member Frederick to approve the Consent Agenda 
Items a – e, which include the following:  

 
a. Bills  
 

October 6, 2016        $5,896,350.47 
  

Resolved to approve the release of checks in the amount of $5,896,350.47 for services rendered, of the 
report that is 24 pages in length, and of the grand total amount of $5,896,350.47, $574,662.48 went to 
other taxing authorities. 
 
b. Fees  
Resolved that the following Fees be approved as presented: 

 
Ihrie O’Brien        $      12,424.50 
 
c. Progress Payments   
 
Resolved that the following Progress Payments be approved as presented: 

 
Doetsch Industrial Services, Inc.      $  31,552.74 
A D J Excavating        $297,138.86 
Fontana Construction       $278,453.10 
Cipparrone Contracting, Inc.       $132,532.02 
Cipparrone Contracting, Inc.       $  37,960.34 
Florence Cement Company       $212,423.98 
 
d. Approval of Minutes - None 

 
e. Receive & File Boards, Commissions & Committee Minutes  

Resolved that the following minutes be received and filed: 
 
Minutes Meeting Date   

 
 Cool City Committee  September 13, 2016 
 Police & Fire Pension Board  August 25, 2016 
 Police & Fire Retiree Health Car Trust Board August 25, 2016 



  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 8 of 10 
 

 
Agenda Item 7 (cont’d) 

 
 Tax Increment Finance Authority  August 18, 2016 
 Water Resources & Advisory Board  September 6, 2016 
  
Ayes:  All – 7 
 
8. UPDATES AND FOLLOW-UPS FROM COUNCIL MEETING   
 
Masonic Lights/DTE - Mayor Walby asked if we got DTE out on the Masonic lights.  Mr. Rayes said he did follow up 
with them.  He spoke with them about a week ago and he left a voice message for them.  
 
North Fire Station water damage issues - Mr. Smith said we are very fortunate that we were able to get an RV 
because restoration companies wanted RV’s to take down south.   
 
9. COMMENTS BY INDIVIDUAL COUNCILPERSONS 
 
Council Member Caron said the Halloween Party for the Dog Park was moved to October 23rd.  
 
Mr. Caron asked why we did several turn arounds when doing the water main project on Masonic.  
 
Mr. Rayes said it was discussed internally.   
 
Mr. Caron asked if it was within the project costs.  
 
Mr. Rayes said it was within the costs.  It was a standard left hand turn around the island.   
 
Council Member Frederick said we lost a member of the Optimist Club.  Jimmy Kaza passed away.  He gave his 
condolences to the family.  
 
Mr. Frederick announced hockey opening day.  It is great to see our new semi-pro hockey team supporting our 
youngsters.  
 
Mr. Frederick congratulated the Cool City Committee on a successful Shorestoberfest.  It was a great night, great 
weather, and a lot of games.  
 
Mr. Frederick said he found out that First State Bank is offering free shredding.  He thanked them.   
 
Mr. Frederick thanked Shannon Ketelhut, Mark Beghin, and the Lake Shore seniors for helping residents.  
 
Mr. Frederick made Library announcements.  
 
Council Member Vitale encouraged everyone to vote on November 8th.  
 
Mayor Walby gave a reminder that the next Council Meeting is on November 21st.  
 
Council Member Accica said it was impressive at the hockey opening day.  The bathrooms at Veterans Memorial 
Park are coming along.  It has taken a little bit longer, but it is all volunteers.  
 
Council Member Rusie made Library announcements.  A lot of churches and schools have Halloween events and 
she announced upcoming Halloween events.  
 
Ms. Rusie announced the Cultural Committee Directors Cut event.  They are bringing in the new director of the 
DIA.    
 
Ms. Rusie congratulated her sister and her now husband on their wedding a couple weeks ago.  
 
Ms. Rusie said she wasn’t informed until the next day of the North Fire Station closure issues.  She first was 
informed from a news organization.  She would like better communication from administration.  She would like to 
be better informed.  She was disappointed that she didn’t find out until 5 p.m. the next day.   
 
Council Member Rubino said the bids and the bid process it is very important that we get this right.  If we are up 
here and we are totally dismayed at how it is done what do you think the people think about it.  
 
Mr. Rubino asked at street soliciting.  



  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 9 of 10 
 

Agenda Item 9 (cont’d) 
 
Mr. Ihrie said the Attorney General opinion is that it is not law.  He noted that the Attorney General was careful in 
drawing certain conclusions in what impedes or does not impede traffic.  If the City Council decides it wants to 
continue City street solicitations and if we do choose to grant permits we do need to recognize that there is some 
form out there that says it is not lawful.  If there is a death or injury then he feels that we would be criticized for 
permitting street solicitations.  Our ordinance does not require a waiver, but he feels we should require a waiver.  
He would recommend getting recommendations from MMRA.  
 
Mr. Rubino said he agrees that we should require a waiver. 
 
Mr. Rubino mentioned that there was a heave in the cement at Shorecrest and the cement was taken out and 
replaced with asphalt.   
 
Mr. Smith said it is temporary and it will be less than 12 months.  
 
Mr. Rubino told Mr. Rayes that he got a call from an angry resident that the City is tearing up intersection work at 
Little Mack and Frazho.  
 
Mr. Rayes said all the barricades should be removed shortly.  It had nothing to do with the work that was just done 
on Frazho.   
 
Mr. Rubino said Cool City Committee did a great job on Shorestoberfest and he thinks this is going to continue 
being a big event in the City.   
 
Mr. Rubino mentioned hockey opening day.  We got a bargain on the money we spent on the arena.  It was money 
well spent.  It was a great job.  Very exciting to see the pro team coming in.  He said “hats off” to Councilman 
Accica.  
 
Mr. Rubino said the County drain (pump station) at Bon Heur looks like there was work done.  A resident said it 
smells worse than before.  
 
Mr. Rayes said the cement they poured is for the generator.   
 
Mr. Rubino announced the VFW Bruce Post Halloween Party and Save Lake St. Clair presentation.  
 
10. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
Mr. Smith apologized for Council not being informed sooner about the fire station closure.  
 
Mr. Smith said they did a pre-construction meeting at the Senior Center.  It looks like they will start construction the 
first week of November.   
 
Mr. Smith announced for people to be prepared when they get to the poles for the Election.  He said to read the 
ballot before they get into the Election or to vote absentee.  
 
Mr. Smith informed residents that they can dispose of pumpkins by either putting them in the trash or with the yard 
waste.  
 
11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT)  
 
David Gloede, St. Clair Shores Resident, said he went to CDI in the middle of September to bring up a couple of 
issues about threshold requirement.  He got an answer that both were in compliance.  Mike’s on the Water fixed 
the issue immediately.  Red Olive restaurant is not required to put in buttons, but they are encouraged.  The City’s 
Building Inspector said they both were in compliance.  He asked why he said that when they weren’t in compliance.  
Red Olives was in compliance with the measurements, but there were other issues.  
 
Mayor Walby said we will ask the inspector and get to the bottom of it.  
 
Dan Henry, St. Clair Shores, said he has a home alarm system and they said he has to register it with the City.  
The Police Department sent him to City Hall and City Hall said he would receive a bill.  He received a 2nd bill for 
$60 and never received a 1st bill for $30.  
 
Mayor Walby asked him to leave his address and phone number with the City Clerk.   



  Approved 12/05/2016 

City Council Meeting October 17, 2016 Page 10 of 10 
 

 
12. MAYOR’S COMMENTS  
 
Mayor Walby said to call Parks and Recreation for Lac Ste Clair storage to store vehicles, boats, or RV’s. 
 
Mayor Walby announced the candy buy back program will be Sunday, November 6th.  The candy goes to military in 
supporting the troops.   
 
Mayor Walby said the Halloween Event is at Veteran’s Memorial Park on October 30th.  AFSCME will have a table 
there collecting food for St. Margaret’s food pantry.  
 
Mayor Walby said he went to hockey opening day and the locker rooms look terrific.  It was a great partnership 
between the Hockey Association and Parks and Recreation for the locker rooms.  It was done beautifully and 
worked out well.  We need support the St. Clair Shores Fighting Saints.  Their first game is October 30th.  
 
13. REQUEST TO ENTER CLOSED SESSION AS PERMITTED BY STATE STATUTE MCLA 15.268 

SECTIONS 8 (H) AND (E) BACHMANN-BONNELL V ST. CLAIR SHORES AND THOMPSON V ST. CLAIR 
SHORES 

 
Motion by Council Member Caron, seconded by Council Member Rusie to enter closed session as 
permitted by State Statute MCLA 15.268 Sections 8 (h) and (e) Bachmann-Bonnell V St. Clair Shores, and 
Thompson V St. Clair Shores. At 9:34 pm.  
 
Roll Call Vote  
Ayes:  All – 7 
 
Motion by Council Member  Frederick, seconded by Council Member Caron to return to Open Session at  
10:23 p.m. 
 
Ayes:  All – 6 
Absent: Vitale 
 
 
Motion by Frederick, seconded by Rubino to direct our Attorney to proceed as discussed in closed session 
regarding Thompson v St. Clair Shores.  
 
Ayes: 6 
Absent: Vitale  
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Moved by Council Member Frederick, supported by Council Member Caron to adjourn at 10:25 p.m. 
 
Ayes:  All –6 
Absent: Vitale  
 
 
 
 
________________________________________  _____________________________________ 
KIP C. WALBY, MAYOR      MARY A. KOTOWSKI, CITY CLERK 
 
(THE PRECEDING MINUTES ARE A SYNOPSIS OF A CITY COUNCIL MEETING AND DO NOT REPRESENT A 
VERBATIM RECORD). 


	MINUTES
	ST. CLAIR SHORES CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	October 17, 2016
	Regular Meeting of the City Council, held in the Council Chambers, located at 27600 Jefferson Circle Dr., St. Clair Shores, Michigan.
	Present: Mayor Kip C. Walby, Council Members Peter Accica, John Caron, Ronald Frederick, Peter Rubino, Candice Rusie, and Chris Vitale

